Public Document
Pack
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S
TRUST BOARD
AGENDA
Tuesday, 25 September 2012 commencing at 9.00 am
Professional Excellence Centre, Acre Lane, Bromborough
1.

09:00 APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

09:10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

09:15 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)

4.

09:20 ELECTION OF THE DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON

5.

09:25 REVIEW OF THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING/BOARD
MEMBERSHIP ANNUAL REVIEW/PROPOSED PRODUCTION OF A NEW
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN (Pages 7 - 26)

6.

09:45 COMMISSIONING UPDATE (Pages 27 - 34)

7.

10:00 CHILD POVERTY UPDATE (Pages 35 - 36)

10:20 BREAK
8.

10:40 HELP SURVEY (Pages 37 - 42)

9.

10:55 STAYING SAFE STRATEGY GROUP ANNUAL REPORT

10.

11:20 CHILDREN'S WORKFORCE STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN

11.

11:45 2012-13 QUARTER ONE PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 43 - 52)

12.

11:55 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Date and time of next meeting: 27th November 2012 09:00 - 12:00

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda
Item
3
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S
TRUST
BOARD
MINUTES
!
Minutes!of!the!meeting!held!on!Tuesday,!17th!July!2012!
!
Present:! Mark Parkinson (Acting Chair), Councillor Wendy Clements, Val McGee, Derek
Kitchin (WASH), Sue Brown, Lyn Loughran, Bev Morgan, Andrew Davies, Kathryn Podmore,
Richard Longster, Jane Owens, Lisa Cooper

Apologies: Councillor Tony Smith, Julia Hassall, Councillor Chris Meaden, Fiona Johnstone,
Tina Long, Ch Supt. John Martin, Gillian Thomas

In Attendance: Tracy Little, Caroline McKenna, Tracey Coffey, Maureen McDaid, Vivian
Stafford, Elizabeth Hartley

!
1.0 APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS
M Parkinson noted that he was chairing the meeting on behalf of the Lead Member for
Children’s Services Councillor T Smith and also the Acting Director of Children’s Services J
Hassall; both of whom had sent their apologies.
2.0 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
B Morgan declared an interest in 8 by virtue of commissioned service. Councillor Clements
works in a preschool.
3.0 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
Resolved: The minutes were agreed as a true record.
4.0 SAFEGUARDING BOARD – QUARTERLY UPDATE
E Hartley introduced the Wirral Safeguarding Children Board (WSCB) Annual Report. The
report is published on Wirral Councils WSCB website and contains information on
achievements made by the WSCB over 2011/2012, the business plan for 2012/13 and the
changing landscape for safeguarding children.
The report outlines the strength in relationship between the WSCB and the Children’s Trust
Board and notes that this relationship will continue to strengthen accountabilities throughout
2012/13.
E Hartley noted the Section 11 audit, a number of quality assurance audits and quarterly
performance monitoring had been completed in 2011/12. The performance framework will
continue to be developed across the partnership in 2012/13.

Page 1

C McKenna noted that there had been a recent change in that Serious Case Reviews
(SCRs) would now be submitted to the Department for Education (DfE) and not to Ofsted.
Actions identified from SCRs will be assessed as part of the Ofsted inspection process.
The WSCB priorities as outlined in the Business Plan are:
1. Further develop professional expertise in safeguarding practice
2. Improve learning from Serious Case Reviews
3. Ensure outcomes for children are the focus of interventions and performance
management reporting
4. Implement the actions from the 2011 Serious Case Reviews
5. Continue to improve the functioning and accountability of WSCB
6. Continue to strengthen joint working between WSCB and SAPB
Caroline added that there are further requirements around developing an action plan against
sexual exploitation in response to the Rochdale case.
There has been development of joint working across children’s and adults safeguarding
boards and some subcommittees have been merged. This will develop learning and provide
efficiencies. A new tool will be developed to evaluate training. C McKenna added that the
Pan Merseyside Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) has been formed to provide joint
intelligence around child deaths and what can be done to reduce these.
In Wirral currently 335 children have a Child Protection plan. This is higher than expected for
the area, some is multigenerational and mainly issues around neglect.
E Hartley noted that there has been a reduction in the number of allegations of sexual abuse
over the last 12 months.
S Brown asked how the Intensive Family Intervention Programme (IFIP) would work with
these children and families. T Coffey answered that the focus would be addressing working
with these families through an early offer of support before an intervention is required.
M Parkinson asked if we should be looking to support children before they get to the Team
Around the Child (TAC) threshold. T Coffey commented that research carried out showed
that less than 1 in 10 children coming to social care have a previous Common Assessment
Framework (CAF). Further work was underway in this area to focus early intervention work
with the right families.
B Morgan thanked the WSCB for the training offered to the voluntary, community and faith
(VCF) sector.
J Owens asked how the Council involved private and voluntary childcare providers in
safeguarding training. M Parkinson noted that the relationship was good and that take up for
safeguarding training was high.
R Longster commented that the report was well written and presented.
C McKenna noted that the Wirral Children’s Trust (WCT) and WSCB had developed a strong
relationship underpinned by the shared protocol in the WCT Memorandum of Understanding.
There were further opportunities to develop their relationship and work closely to ensure
accountability and challenge between the WCT Board and the WSCB. It was proposed that a
joint workshop was arranged to develop this further.
M Parkinson thanked E. Hartley for her report and work over the last 12 months.

Page 2

Resolved: The Board endorsed the report and agreed with the proposal for a joint WCT and
WSCB workshop to be arranged. C McKenna would meet with N Clarkson to instigate this.

5.0 MUNRO IMPLICATIONS
C McKenna gave an update regarding the Munro Review and the implications for Wirral. The
work can be described in four themes:
! Valuing professional expertise
! Sharing responsibility for the provision of early help
! Developing social work expertise.
! Strengthening accountabilities and creating a learning system.
Pilot work is underway within the Wallasey District co-located team to evaluate the impact of
the new proposals. The working group from this project have noted the following:
! More time with children to know their children’s needs.
! One assessment for each child to replace the Common Assessment Framework and initial
and core assessments.
! Resources - how these are managed in a multi-agency approach.
! Are we making the most of the co-located teams, can we improve they way we work
together in sharing assessments and knowledge effectively.
The next step is to ensure the findings from the pilot are fully evaluated in order to inform the
development of new practice and processes.
V McGee noted that CAMHS partners support joint assessments and asked how well the
partners share their information around families.
C McKenna replies that there is mixed practice and that aligning assessments into one
common assessment would improve this.
T Coffey added that the levels of criteria for accessing services are different in different
service areas and that the approach could be strengthened by focusing on family needs.
C McKenna added that a key would be to ensure that professional maintain their expertise
whilst providing an improved early intervention and support service.
The Munro action plan is under development and will he presented to the Wirral
Safeguarding Children Board in September to develop an early offer approach and working
together policy and procedure.
Resolved: The board endorsed the update and requested a further report at the November
meeting.

6.0 PEER CHALLENGE - FAMILY SUPPORT
T Coffey gave a presentation regarding the recent Peer Challenge process carried out
through the new Children’s Improvement Board approach. This was a useful opportunity for
Wirral to identify an area where improvements could be made and to receive expert advice
from other Local Authorities.

Page 3

The peer challenge centred around the provision of family support services in Wirral with a
focus on investment in early intervention, how to improve the service and remove potential
duplication and budget pressures.
Key messages from the peer challenge will be incorporated into a review of family support
services ensuring that services are aligned with new initiatives such as the IFIP programme.
Resolved: The board endorsed the presentation.

7.0 STRATEGY GROUP ANNUAL UPDATE
V Stafford presented the Social and Economic Well Being (SEWB) Strategy Group annual
report. She reported that since taking the strategic leadership of the group a review had been
undertaken and the group had been reformed to incorporate the existing 14-19 Partnership
and the SEWB group. This has strengthened the group which is well attended with strong
representation across the partnership.
The key SEWB performance indicators were outlined which provided a mixed picture.
Challenges remain around ensuring young people access education, employment and
training (EET) opportunities, Level 3 attainment and the attainment gap at Level 3 between
young people eligible and not eligible for free school meals. The importance of Level 3
achievement at age 19 was stressed as this is a key factor for young people to progress to
high level achievement and higher skilled jobs. The group are clearly focused on the
challenges and activities underway are outlined in the Children and Young People’s Plan
(CYPP).
Work with the attainment of care leavers at 19 has been a focus for the team and a year on
year increase has been achieved. The 2012/13 target is stretching at 65% but will bring
Wirral in line with comparators. The 2012/13 cohort is significantly larger than in previous
years which present challenges but new tracking and assessment arrangements are in place.
The September Guarantee is currently the highest is has been for Wirral at this point in the
year, which means all young people have a guaranteed place in learning in September 2012.
The local offer for young people with complex learning difficulties has improved and has
reduced the numbers of young people sourcing provision out of borough.
The provision for NEET includes the ‘New Futures’ offer which is in place to encourage
young people to learning. There is funding from New Horizons (Greater Merseyside
Connexions Partnership) to deliver up to 4000 opportunities across the Liverpool City Region
targeted at the hard to reach young people. A new contract has been secured to improve
outcomes for young people aged 16-17 who have no GCSEs through the Youth Contract.
V Stafford reported that due to the different funding streams in operation there is now a
national change in the landscape in the way that provision is being offered. As a result some
local provision is being delivered via contractors and subcontractors that are not monitored
via the 14-19 team.
M Parkinson added that the landscape could mean that a child has a number of key workers
from different organisations. V Stafford noted that the outcome could be that a child is “in
learning” but not progressing.
Councillor W Clements asked if we can engage with providers. V Stafford replied that they
have been invited and are requested to engage with the SEWB team, thought this is not

Page 4

written into contracts. As the 14-19 partnership is no longer statutory there is no longer a
requirement to write this into contracts.
A big challenge for the SEWB is the change in funding streams related to young people who
have high dependency which can affect their transition arrangements.
S Brown asked what the board could do to support the SEWB group related to the areas
highlighted.
M Parkinson noted that the board members through their respective groups could champion
the need for appropriate progression routes for young people at key transition points.
M Parkinson thanked V Stafford and the SEWB group for their work.
Resolved: The Board agreed to support SEWB in approaches to providers and requested a
further report is brought to a future board.

8.0 COMMISSIONING UPDATE
M McDaid provided the update to the board. Contracts for the Early Intervention Grant (EIG)
were initially awarded in July 2011 for a 12 month period with possible contract extension.
Providers have now been advised of extensions
Planning of 2013-14 commissioning is underway incorporating a needs analysis, evaluation
of outcomes from previous contracts and commissioning panel training. Documents will be
available on the CHEST by the end of September.
Resolved: That the Board noted the report.

9.0 INTENSIVE FAMILY INTERVENTION PROGRAMME – UPDATE
M McDaid updated that the Intensive Family Intervention Programme (IFIP) is the local name
for the national Troubled Families Project. The new project manager has been appointed and
will commence in September 2012.
The report updated the board on progress so far in the development of the programme, the
approach to funding and the delivery model including secondment and commissioning
options to optimise delivery and flexibility as required. Programme Board membership has
been agreed and Wirral is continuing to work with Louise Casey and the national Troubled
Families Team.
Resolved: The Board noted the reported and requested a further progress report in six
months.

10.0 CHILD POVERTY
B Morgan updated that the Wirral Child Poverty Strategy is still in draft form.
The Liverpool City Region (LCR) child poverty work is underway and a website is being
developed to share information and updating their needs assessments.
Key areas being reviewed by the LCR work includes:! School Readiness

Page 5

!
!
!

Breast Feeding
Financial Inclusion
Sustainable Transport

L Loughran updated that the Child Poverty e-learning module will be rolled out shortly
through the Children’s Workforce Development Group.
Resolved: The board noted the update provided.

11.0 ANY OTHER BUSINESS
The board thanked M Parkinson for his substantial contribution during his time in Wirral and
wished him well for the future.
The Board extended their thanks to Derek Kitchin and Andrew Davies for their work with the
board over the last twelve months and wished them well for the future.

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETINGS
Tuesday, 25th September 2012
Tuesday, 27th November 2012 (Rearranged from 20th November)
Tuesday, 22nd January 2013
Tuesday, 26th March 2013 (Rearranged from 19th March)
Tuesday, 21st May 2013
Tuesday, 16th July 2013

Page 6

Agenda Item 5
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 25th SEPTEMBER 2012
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND BOARD
MEMBERSHIP ANNUAL REVIEW AND PROPOSED PRODUCTION OF A NEW
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN

1.0 Background
A Memorandum of Understanding was developed for Wirral Children’s Trust in June 2009 to
ensure that the structure and governance arrangements provide an effective and transparent
framework and clarity of roles and responsibilities for partner organisations. The original
memorandum was developed using Wirral Council Partnership Governance Framework,
Audit Commission Children’s Trusts tools and good practice in other areas. As defined in the
memorandum the membership of the board and the memorandum itself are reviewed on an
annual basis.
One of the key purposes of the Children’s Trust outlined in the memorandum is for setting
the strategic direction for services to children through joint planning and service delivery
through the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP).

2.0 Annual Review of the Memorandum of Understanding
There is no longer a statutory requirement for a Children’s Trust however through discussion
Wirral’s Children’s Trust have agreed that the Trust in tandem with the Wirral Safeguarding
Children Board provides a clear framework for partnership working for the benefit of Wirral’s
children, young people and families.
Since the inception of the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) discussions have
been held regarding joint future development to ensure the optimisation of the integration of
health and children’s services and no duplication between the two structures. In September
2012 a report was taken to the Shadow Health and Well Being Board which outlined the
functions of the Children’s Trust and the purpose of the CYPP. The report was well received
by the Board and there was agreement that at this stage the approach of the Trust was
complimentary to the work of the HWBB. Dialog between the two boards would continue and
this would be enhanced by ensuring the new Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy under
development by the HWBB would incorporate input from Wirral Children’s Trust.
The memorandum has been refreshed in light of national guidance and local changes. The
protocol between the Trust and the Local Safeguarding Children Board remains embedded
within the memorandum. The refreshed memorandum is now presented for endorsement by
the board.

3.0 Annual Review of the Membership of Wirral Children’s Trust Board
The membership of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure it remains relevant in
line with local and national changes. Wirral University Teaching Hospital has contacted the
Children’s Trust coordinator and requested a change in membership from two to one
member representing the organisation. Apart from this organisational representation change

Page 7

the further membership of the board has been reviewed as requiring no necessary change at
this time.
4.0 Production of a New Children and Young People’s Plan
The development and delivery of the CYPP is overseen by the Children’s Trust Executive. In
their meeting on the 11th September 2012 the Executive discussed the CYPP and re-iterated
the importance of the plan in ensuring joint delivery of priorities for children, young people
and their families.
The Executive makes a number of recommendations regarding the production of a new
CYPP:
! The new CYPP should be a three year plan 2013-2016. The production of a three
year plan allows a more strategic approach to planning services and key projects.
! An annual report will be produced which outlines the effectiveness of the delivery of
each year of the new CYPP. This annual report not only allows accurate assessment
of our effectiveness but also allows reflection and continuous learning.
! At the time of review the Executive will consider the existing plan and if appropriate
put in place a refresh related to national and local changes. This will allow flexibility
and ensure that the CYPP retains its relevance in times of change.
! A timeframe was agreed by the Executive which will produce a new CYPP to be
reviewed by the Children’s Trust Board in March 2013.
! In line with the development of the plan the Strategy Groups and Executive will review
the structure and function of the Children’s Trust sub-groups and develop these
groups as appropriate to ensure the foundations are in place to effectively deliver the
new CYPP. The structure, function and effectiveness will be reviewed annually with
the CYPP review. The proposed new structure for 2013-14 will be in place by 1 April
2013.

5.0 Recommendations:
5.1 That Wirral Children’s Trust Board endorses the refreshed memorandum.
5.2 That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the reduction in Wirral University Teaching
Hospital organisational representation, considers the remaining membership and makes
proposals if any additional further changes are deemed necessary.
5.3 That Wirral Children’s Trust Board agree the Children’s Trust Executive recommended
proposals related to the Children and Young People’s Plan.

Report Author:
Nancy Clarkson
Strategic Service Manager Infrastructure

Contact:
Phone: 6664329
Email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding

Page 8

Wirral Children’s Trust

Memorandum of Understanding
September 2012

DRAFT

Version 4
September 2012

Page 9

Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding
Contents

Foreword
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0
10.0
11.0

12.0
13.0
14.0
15.0
16.0
17.0
18.0
19.0

Introduction
Statement of Commitment
Aims of Wirral Children’s Trust
Partnership Principles
Governance and Accountability Arrangements
Decision Making
Challenge Process
Partner Roles and Responsibilities
The Scope of Involvement
The Role of the Director of Children’s Services & Lead Member
Protocol between WCT and the Wirral Safeguarding Children Board
11.1
Roles
11.2
WSCB Responsibilities
11.3
Children’s Trust Responsibilities
11.4
Operational Arrangements
11.5
Accountability
Leadership
Commissioning
Performance Management
Information Sharing
Risk Assessment
Equalities and Inclusion
Dispute and Conflict Resolution
Review of the memorandum of understanding
Figure 1 The Structure of Wirral Children’s Trust

1
1
1
1
2
2
2
3
3
4
4
4
5
6
6
6
6
6
7
7
7
7
7
8
9

20.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Board
20.1
Role of Wirral Children’s Trust Board
20.2
Terms of Reference
20.3
Membership
20.4
Meeting Arrangements

10
10
10
10
11

21.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive
21.1
Role of Wirral Children’s Executive
21.2
Terms of Reference
21.3
Membership
21.4
Meeting Arrangements

12
12
12
12
12

22.0

Strategy Groups
22.1
Role of Strategy Groups
22.2
Terms of Reference
22.3
Membership
22.4
Meeting Arrangements

13
13
13
13
13

23.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Support

14

Page 10

Foreword
Children and young people are society’s future and with them rest our hopes and aspirations.
Supporting their interest and welfare is paramount. Through Wirral Children’s Trust we will secure
an active partnership of services, parents and carers, working together to deliver the best
outcomes for all our children and young people and thus enabling them to fulfil their potential.
The purpose of this memorandum of understanding is to ensure that the structure and governance
arrangements of Wirral Children’s Trust provide an effective and transparent framework and clarity
of roles and responsibilities and that effective use is made of public resources for the benefit of
children and young people.

<photo>

<photo>

Councillor Tony Smith
Lead Member for Children’s Services

Julia Hassall
Acting Director of Children’s Services

<signature on approval>

<signature on approval>

Page 11

Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding
1.0

Introduction

1.1

Children’s Trusts are local partnership arrangements to improve children’s well-being. They
are not defined in legislation but are underpinned by a ‘duty to co-operate in section 10 of
the Children Act 2004. This memorandum establishes Wirral Children’s Trust (WCT)
arrangements for governance, integrated working, joint planning and commissioning, and
accountabilities in order to deliver improved outcomes for Wirral’s children and young
people.

2.0

Statement of Commitment

2.1

The member organisations of WCT are committed to working together at every level to
improve the quality of life and wellbeing of all children and young people in Wirral.

3.0

Aims of Wirral Children’s Trust

3.1

“Our vision is to enable Wirral’s children, young people and families to access services
quickly in order to be secure, healthy, have fun and achieve their full potential”

3.2

The aim of WCT is to work across professional and agency boundaries to make a
difference to the experience and life chances of children, young people and their families.
The trust will agree priorities and actions for children’s services ensuring safeguarding
underpins all activity and provide a framework for the effective operation of local
arrangements. The framework will support a focus on preventative and early intervention
services and ensure service providers understand what is expected of them. Monitoring of
performance will inform future planning and commissioning, ensuring clear strategic
direction and providing value for money.

4.0

Partnership Principles

4.1

The members agree to work together actively to achieve the aims of WCT, on the basis of:
! visible commitment and ‘ownership’ by the various member organisations and individual
representatives;
! mutual trust and respect;
! openness and transparency;
! effective communication and accountability;
! shared ownership of resources where appropriate;
! combined expertise;
! creative and innovative solutions to problems;
! identification and sharing of best practice, based on mutual learning;
! removal of barriers to equality of access and opportunity;
! clear purpose, clarity of expectations and agreed targets for action;
! effective decision-making;
! shared mechanisms for risk management, monitoring, evaluation, reviewing and
reporting on performance, progress and success;
! allowing each constituent member unobstructed access to the audit records of the
partnership, on request.

Page 12

1

5.0

Governance and Accountability Arrangements

5.1

The governance and accountability arrangements set out in this document put into
operation the duty to cooperate as set out in section 10 of the Children Act 2004.

5.2

This applies to all services provided or commissioned by WCT that support children and
young people’s 0 to 19 and specific groups of young people up to age 25.

5.3

WCT requires each partner agency to retain full responsibility for its statutory duties and
functions at all times and allows for these duties and functions to be carried out through a
system of joint planning and commissioning. This supplements existing organisational
arrangements and provides additional robust accountabilities outside of existing partner
agency arrangements.

5.4

The Board will take responsibility for setting the strategic direction for services to children,
young people and their families. This includes setting priorities, joint planning and
commissioning decisions; the alignment of resources at strategic level and agreeing service
models based on service performance and agreed service specifications.

5.5

Through the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) the Board will act as the single
coordination body for all children’s services planning and commissioning arrangements and
will be the focus for facilitating joint working leading to the integration of multi agency
services for children and young people and their families.

5.6

The Board will be responsible and accountable for the performance and commissioning
decisions made by all other planning and commissioning groups in children’s services.

5.7

The Board will be accountable to the Wirral Safeguarding Children’s Board (WSCB) for the
actions it takes in ensuring that all children and young people in Wirral are adequately
safeguarded.

5.8

WCT assumes all partners accept collective responsibility and accountability for all
decisions made by the Board. However, within this collective responsibility and decisionmaking process it is recognised there are different levels of accountability and risk for
individual agencies and organisations.

6.0

Decision Making

6.1

Each partner agency accepts collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board.
All decisions will be transparent and informed by open debate, advice, performance
reporting and analysis, best practice, risk assessment and option appraisal.

6.2

Decision making will be by consensus, wherever possible, but if a consensus cannot be
reached, decisions will be taken on a simple majority of those present and voting will be by
a show of hands. In the event of a tied vote, the person chairing the meeting may exercise
a second or casting vote.

6.3

The Children’s Trust Executive (CTE) and the multi-agency Strategy Groups will be
responsible for providing advice to the Board to support the decision-making processes.

7.0

Challenge process

7.1

In exercising collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board each partner
agency will be open to challenge and scrutiny through the formal processes of the
accountable body (the Council) and of the other agencies.

Page 13

2

7.2

Progress on the delivery of the Children and Young Peoples Plan (CYPP) will be
performance managed by the Board and an annual review will be published which is open
to challenge by any interested party.

8.0

Partner Roles and Responsibilities

8.1

The Local Authority (Council) is responsible for leading WCT and the Council in the
improvement of outcomes for all children and young people. In this respect the Council is
the accountable body for WCT. The Council is responsible for the development and
implementation of the CYPP as the single agreement between the partnership on priorities
and actions for children and young people.

8.2

National Health Service organisations are responsible for ensuring that health provision
meets the identified needs of children, young people and their families on behalf of WCT.
Partner health organisations are responsible for ensuring health provision is aligned to the
priorities agreed in the CYPP, and for the commissioning of health services on behalf of
WCT.

8.3

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service are responsible for ensuring that their strategic
planning encompasses the WCT vision and the priorities in the CYPP.

8.4

The Youth Offending Service (YOS), the police and probation service work together within
the criminal justice system. They have roles in prevention of offending and re-offending,
identification of suitable intervention programmes and identifying children and young people
at risk of harm or other poor outcomes. The Police are responsible for ensuring that the
Local Policing Plan is consistent with the WCT vision and the priorities in the CYPP.

8.5

The Third Sector have a significant expertise in the delivery of services and in engaging
children and families in identifying needs, innovative service models and commissioning
priorities. Third Sector representation is responsible for informing WCT on these areas of
expertise and for ensuring the sector has a voice in identifying priorities and actions in the
CYPP.

8.6

Schools, Academies, Sixth Form and Further Education Colleges, School Governor and
School Forum representatives are responsible for ensuring the sector inform and influence
priority setting in the CYPP and advise the WCT on engagement with schools in Wirral.

8.7

Job Centre Plus representatives are responsible for ensuring their organisation inform,
influence and advise the Board.

9.0

The Scope of Involvement

9.1

WCT Board will demonstrate clear links to other thematic partnerships through the Local
Strategic Partnership (LSP) to ensure that strategies are not fragmented and that different
services share priorities and thinking. WCT will inform and influence the work of the LSP in
regards to children, young people and families.

9.2

The views of children and young people are at the centre of strategic planning and service
design. WCT Board will ensure ongoing high quality consultation with children, young
people and their families is undertaken to empower and engage the wider community.
Specific consultation will be carried out during the preparation of the CYPP.

Page 14

3

10.0

Role of the Director of Children’s Services and Lead Member

10.1

The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) has professional responsibility for children’s
services, including operational matters; the LMCS has political responsibility for children’s
services. Together with the Chief Executive and Leader the DCS and LMCS have a key
leadership role both within the local authority and working with other local agencies to
improve outcomes for children and young people.

10.2

The DCS has professional responsibility for the leadership, strategy and effectiveness of
local authority children’s services including services which address the needs of all children
and young people, including the most disadvantaged and vulnerable, and their families and
carers. In discharging these responsibilities, the DCS will work closely with other local
partners to improve the outcomes and well-being of children and young people.

10.3

The LMCS, as a member of the Council Executive, has political responsibility for the
leadership, strategy and effectiveness of local authority children’s services. The LMCS is
also democratically accountable to local communities and has a key role in defining the
local vision and setting political priorities for children’s services within the broader political
context of the Council.

10.4

The DCS and LMCS roles provide a clear and unambiguous line of political and
professional accountability for children’s well-being. Both work to drive forward the
development of a dynamic partnership working and to integrate and transform services.

11.0

Protocol between Wirral Children’s Trust and the Wirral Safeguarding
Children’s Board

11.1

Roles

11.1.1 Wirral Children’s Trust (WCT) and Wirral Safeguarding Children Board (WSCB) have
important but distinctive roles in keeping children safe. It is not a hierarchical relationship.
WCT is accountable for overseeing the delivery of the CYPP. In progressing this plan the
Trust is accountable for ensuring services deliver improved outcomes for children and
young people.
11.1.2 WSCB is responsible for challenging each relevant partner of WCT, through the WCT
Board, on their success in ensuring that children and young people are kept safe in the
Borough.
11.1.3 In order to ensure the complementary roles of the two bodies and the necessary
challenge the two bodies are chaired by different people.
11.1.4 The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) and the Lead Member for Children’s Services
have central roles. The DCS has lead responsibility for improving outcomes for children in
the Borough. The Lead Member is politically accountable for ensuring that the Local
Authority (LA) fulfils its legal responsibilities for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of
children and young people. The Lead Member should provide the political leadership
needed for the effective co-ordination of work with other relevant agencies with
safeguarding responsibilities. The Lead Member will also take steps to assure themselves
that effective quality assurance systems for safeguarding are in place and functioning
effectively across services areas and levels of need.
11.1.5 The DCS is a member of both WCT and WSCB. The DCS will be held to account by the
LA Chief Executive for the effective working of the WSCB. The Lead Member is Chair of
WCT and is a ‘participant observer’ of WSCB as described by “Statutory Guidance on the
Roles and Responsibilities of the Director of Children’s Services and the Lead Member for
Children’s Services” (2012).

Page 15

4

11.1.6 The LA Chief Executive and Council Leader also have critical roles to play. The Chief
Executive must ensure that the DCS is fulfilling their managerial responsibilities for
safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people; in particular the
DCS will be held to account for the effective working of the WSCB.
11.1.7 The Chief Executive and the Lead Member fulfil their responsibilities through monthly
scrutiny meeting with the Head of Branch Children’s Social Care which includes detailed
evaluation of safeguarding including performance and human resources data. In addition
there are quarterly meetings with the Lead member, WSCB Manager, Head of
Safeguarding, Independent chair and the Director of Children’s Services on safeguarding
matters within the WSCB.
11.1.8 The wider public has an important role to play: keeping children safe is everyone’s
responsibility. WCT has actively sought the views of the local community and consulted
children young people and their families when drawing up the CYPP.
11.1.9 From April 2010 WSCB arrangements were opened up to wider public scrutiny through
the appointment to the WSCB of two lay members drawn from the local community. The
aim was to support stronger public engagement in, and understanding of children’s safety
issues and to ensure that the voice and experiences of young people would affirm the
work of WSCB by lay person representation by a member of the Children in Care Council.
11.2

WSCB Responsibilities

11.2.1 The WSCB is the decision making body for multi-agency safeguarding activity within
Wirral. It is a statutory partnership and its work is directed by statutory guidance which
dictates its functions. The DCS has a statutory responsibility for ensuring that an effective
Safeguarding Children Board is in place for the local area.
11.2.2 The work of the WSCB falls into three broad areas, all of which aim to safeguard children
and promote their welfare by:
! Protecting children from maltreatment;
! Preventing impairment of children’s health or development;
! Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe
and effective care.
11.2.3 The WSCB is well positioned through its various quality assurance processes to advise,
and where appropriate, challenge WCT arrangements. For example learning from Serious
Case Reviews, Child Death Overview Panels, section 11 self assessments and multiagency critical incident reviews. . This includes oversight of the commissioning
arrangements for safeguarding by ensuring there is sufficient capacity to meet the needs
of children in Wirral and ensuring that planned service changes has the child at the centre.
11.2.4 The WSCB publishes an Annual Report on the effectiveness of arrangements locally, and
the contribution and activities of each local partner for keeping children safe. In addition
the Council has agreed a Safeguarding Reference Group, chaired by the leader of the
Council, to oversee the annual reports from both the WSCB and the Safeguarding Adults
Partnership Board (non-statutory) to ensure there is an appraisal of the safeguarding
arrangements organised by Council services.
11.2.5 The WSCB will report on its safeguarding performance information on a quarterly basis to
the WCT and WSCB. It will make recommendations from the monitoring and evaluation
of safeguarding arrangements during the year.

Page 16

5

11.3

Children’s Trust Responsibilities

11.3.1 WCT is the local partnership that brings together organisations responsible for children’s
services. It is a thematic group of the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP).
11.3.2 WCT takes responsibility for developing and publishing a Children and Young People’s
Plan (CYPP). The plan sets out how WCT partners co-operate to improve the well-being
of children in the local area and will monitor how partners act in accordance with the plan.
11.3.3 WCT must ensure the work of all the strategy groups takes into account the safeguarding
needs of children in the development of the CYPP.
11.3.4 WCT as part of its CYPP Annual Review will make an assessment of the effectiveness of
partnership arrangements in supporting the best possible standards for safeguarding
children and in its response WCT will ensure that any refresh to the plan include priorities
identified by the WSCB.
11.3.5 WCT will seek approval from WSCB regarding any proposed commissioning
arrangements which are linked to the factors which impact on safeguarding children,
including compromised parenting.

11.4

Operational Arrangements

11.4.1 The WSCB will report to the CT each quarter on the arrangements for local safeguarding
by monitoring and scrutinising activity and offer robust challenge to partners and the Trust
on its activity. It will provide an annual report setting out the assessment of local
safeguarding and its findings and make recommendations for improvement. The WSCB
will also reflect within the annual report priorities for commissioning of safeguarding
activity
11.4.2 Once agreed by WCT Board and the WSCB this protocol will be embedded in Wirral
Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding and will be reviewed annually with the
Memorandum.

11.5

Accountability

11.5.1 The WSCB will request evidence from WCT as to its rigour in commissioning or
developing services that Safeguard children and young people. WSCB will call member
organisations of the Children’s Trust to account should it have evidence that children are
not being adequately safeguarded by one or more relevant partners. The resolution will
require a formal response/ action from WCT within a specific timeframe which will be
agreed mutually.

12.0

Leadership

12.1

Each Board member will act on behalf of their organisation as an ambassador for children
services locally, regionally and nationally. Board members will take responsibility for
ensuring the agreed actions are carried out and their agency/sector is fully informed about
the work of WCT and engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.

13.0

Commissioning

13.1

The Board, supported by the Joint Commissioning Group, will be responsible for the
identification of need and the setting of priorities to support the development of integrated

Page 17

6

multi-agency services for all children, young people and their families. Commissioners will
ensure there is a comprehensive up to date analysis of children and young people’s needs
upon which informed decisions on the design and commissioning of services can be based.
They will coordinate the implementation of the partnerships preventative framework by
identifying shifts in activity and resource allocation that will enable the development of
planned targeted interventions.
13.2

All planning and commissioning decision making will be informed by:
! Needs analysis
! Prevention priorities
! Performance
! Risk analysis

13.3

The Board will carry out an annual review of commissioning and evaluate how outcomes
and services have been improved through the alignment and pooling of resources and
jointly agreed priorities.

14.0

Performance Management

14.1

Each member of the Board will take full responsibility and accountability for the delivery of
the five ECM outcomes. The specific responsibility for the performance management of the
ECM outcomes will be held by the Children’s Trust Executive (CTE).

14.2

The Board will review progress in achieving improved outcomes for all children on a regular
basis. Management information reports will inform the Board of the progress being made in
achieving the key targets set out in the CYPP and relevant areas of Wirral Council’s
Corporate Plan.

15.0

Information Sharing

16.1

The Board will ensure that information sharing protocols are designed to enable intelligence
gathering for effective needs analysis to be carried out on a continuous basis. Information
sharing arrangements will also be developed to ensure the effective implementation of the
common assessment framework (CAF).

16.0

Risk Assessment

16.1

Risks associated with the delivery of the CYPP will be managed by the CTE and escalated
to the Board for formal assessment when necessary

17.0

Equalities and Inclusion

17.1

The Children’s Trust will operate on the basis of principles that actively value the benefits of
diversity and ensure fair treatment and equality of opportunity.

17.2

On an annual basis an equalities impact assessment will be carried out through the CTE
alongside the review of the CYPP.

18.0

Dispute and Conflict Resolution

18.1

Members of the partnership:

Page 18

7

! Must not use their position improperly, confer on, or secure for themselves or any other
person, an advantage or disadvantage.
! Must ensure that activities are not undertaken for political purposes
! Must not unduly influence any person in the paid employment of any of the partner
agencies.
18.2

Issues of conflict within the partnership will be resolved initially by informal discussion. If
this is not successful the issue will be referred to the Chief Executive of each agency who
will meet to attempt to resolve the issue. If the issue is still not resolved appropriate
alternative dispute resolution (ADR) will be considered.

19.0

Review of the Memorandum of Understanding

19.1

This memorandum of understanding will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Page 19

8

Figure 1: The Structure of Wirral Children’s Trust

Local Strategic Partnership

Wirral Safeguarding
Children Board

Wirral Children’s
Trust Board

Partner Decision
Making (e.g. Cabinet)

Youth Justice
Board

Corporate
Parenting Group

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive

Joint
Commissioning
Group

Being Healthy
Strategy
Group

Staying Safe
Strategy
Group

Childhood
Obesity
Teenage
Pregnancy
Family Nurse
Partnership
Steering
Groups

Enjoy and
Achieve
Strategy
Group

Positive
Contribution
Strategy
Group

SEWB
Strategy
Group

Children’s
Workforce
Strategic
Group

Child and
Family
Poverty
Group

Children’s First
Strategic Board
Short Break
Service
Executive
Group

Better
Communication
Group

Children and
Young
People’s
Participation

Looked After
Children Group

Page 20

9

20.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Board

20.1

Role of Wirral Children’s Trust Board

21.1.1 The Boards role is to provide leadership for the Children’s Trust within a framework of
effective controls. Each Board member will act as an ambassador for children services
locally, regionally and nationally.
20.2

Terms of Reference

20.2.1 Board members will:
! Co-ordinate services for children and young people.
! Oversee the preparation, agreement, monitoring and review of the Children and Young
People’s Plan to meet both statutory requirements and local need.
! Ensure that children, young people and their families and carers are able to contribute
effectively to the design and delivery of services for them.
! Determine the integrated strategies required to improve the outcomes for children’s
well-being with robust performance monitoring with regard to outcomes and impact.
! Agree joint commissioning strategies and be responsible for pooled budget
arrangements.
! Create a shared culture and vision amongst partners.
! Identify and celebrate best practice.
! Ensure that there is appropriate challenge where partnership working becomes
ineffective.
! Ensure that their agency/sector is fully informed about the work of the Board and
engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.
! Oversee the arrangements for the sharing of information about children and young
people.
! Maintain a strategic link to the Wirral Safeguarding Children’s Board.
! Demonstrate clear links to other thematic partnerships through the Local Strategic
Partnership (LSP).
! Oversee inspection arrangements and support agencies to meet the requirements of
the Ofsted Children’s Services Inspection regime.
! Oversee the development of future governance arrangements and approve such
arrangements.

20.3

Membership

20.3.1 Chair:

Lead Member for Children’s Services

20.3.2 Deputy:

To be appointed by the board

20.3.3 All partners under a statutory duty to cooperate will be represented and other persons or
bodies the CT board consider appropriate. Attendees to be nominated by their constituent
body.
20.3.4 The membership will include representatives from the following:
! Elected members
! Wirral Council
! Wirral National Health Service organisations
! Merseyside Police
! Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service
! Merseyside Probation Service
! Job Centre Plus

Page 21

10

! The Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector
! Primary and Secondary (including Special) Schools, Sixth Form and FE Colleges and

School and Governor Forum representatives
20.3.5 The membership will be reviewed on an annual basis.

20.4

Meeting Arrangements

20.4.1 The Children’s Trust Board will meet bi-monthly.

Page 22

11

21.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive

21.1

Role of the Children’s Trust Executive

21.1.1 The CTE will operate as an executive of the WCT Board. Whilst the strategic leadership,
accountability and agreement reside with the Board, the CTE works to support the Board
through a process of delegated and devolved decision making powers. All proposals
concerning key strategic developments will be presented to WCT Board for final approval.

21.2

Terms of Reference

21.2.1 Executive members will take responsibility for:
! Delivering the identified needs of Wirral children and young people in terms of the five
outcomes in the Children Act 2004.
! Developing the strategies required to improve the outcomes for children’s well-being.
! The preparation and annual review of the Children and Young People’s Plan.
! Identifying best practice and proposing joint commissioning of services and identifying
shared resources.
! Annual review of joint commissioning arrangements.
! Implementing service improvement priorities.
! Establishing the evidence base behind development proposals.
! Ensuring that agreed actions are carried out.
! Ensuring that the cross agency strategy groups are fully informed about the work of
WCT and are engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.
! Disseminating a shared culture and vision amongst partners in the working groups.
! Performance management.
! Preparing for and evaluating practice to inform inspection arrangements.
21.3

Membership

21.3.1 Chair:

Director of Children’s Services

21.3.2 Deputy:

To be nominated by the Executive

21.3.3 The membership includes the Strategy Lead for each multi-agency strategy group and
invited representatives.

21.4

Meeting Arrangements

21.4.1The CTE will meet bi-monthly.

Page 23

12

22.0

Strategy Groups

22.1

Role of the Strategy Groups

22.1.1 The multi-agency strategy groups (SG) are linked to the five ECM outcome areas for
children and young people. They own the CYPP and are responsible for its delivery. They
are accountable to WCT Board and the CTE.

22.2

Terms of Reference

22.2.1 The Strategy Groups are responsible for:
! The monitoring and reporting on progress. Issues regarding their respective
performance indicators, CYPP priorities, allocated tasks groups and any other locally
based targets agreed by the partnership.
! Receive information from and respond to requests from other groups and stakeholders.
! Make quarterly performance progress reports highlighting areas of poor performance,
issues and risk.
! Develop opportunities for multi-agency involvement and networking to share best
practice.
! Provide support and information to other groups within the Trust.
! Maintain effective arrangements to consult with children, young people, families and
carers, act on the results of the consultation and provide feedback.

22.3

Membership

22.3.1 Chair: Outcome area Strategy Lead
22.3.2 Multi-agency representation related to each outcome area, including family
representation.

22.4

Meeting Arrangements

22.4.1 To be agreed by each group.

Page 24

13

23.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Support

23.1

The Children’s Services Department Planning and Resources Branch will provide the
following key functions to WCT Board and the CTE:
! Agenda.
! Minutes.
! Performance management reporting arrangements.
! Seek appropriate contributions from partners to support the CT governance framework.
! If required send representation to advise groups in terms of processes relating to
governance reporting and standard agenda items.

Page 25

14

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 25 SEPTEMBER 2012
MONITORING REPORT QUARTER TWO: EARLY INTERVENTION GRANT FUNDED
SERVICES

1.0

Background

1.1

This report informs Committee about the final quarter’s performance of Early
Intervention Grant commissioned services for year 2011-12. After contracts were
awarded, performance measures to underpin service delivery were agreed with
each of the service providers. The Priority areas for which services were
commissioned were:
PA1 – Parenting/Compromised Parenting
PA1 – Short Breaks for Disabled Children
PA3 – Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People

1.2

Delivery against the performance measures have been RAG rated Red, Amber or
Green. A Red rating denotes underperformance; Amber reflects work in progress
broadly in line with expectations and Green is meeting or exceeding expectations.
Red and Amber ratings are followed up by commissioners in one to one discussions
at which corrective actions are identified to improve performance.

2.0

Introduction

2.1

The Early Intervention Grant (EIG) has funded a number of services to meet the
demands of the priority areas outlined above in 1.1. Funding for these services
funded through the EIG will run from until 31st March 2013. The guidance from the
Department for Education indicates that the EIG should support the following
services:
!
!
!
!

2.2

Early Intervention Grant funded services are delivered within the following
principles:
!
!
!
!

2.3

Sure Start Children’s’ Centres
Short breaks for disabled children
Targeted support for vulnerable young people
Targeted support for families with multiple problems.

Early intervention: to intervene to stop the problem developing.
Early prevention: acting proactively to ensure that problems do not arise in the
first place.
Early identification: identifying problems early or identifying the risk of
problems early.
Personalisation: the provision of greater personalised support.

In Wirral, the Early Intervention Grant (EIG) has been used to drive service delivery
which is prompt, appropriate, effective and planned around the family and the child.
The Dashboard for each priority is attached as appendices A (PA1 Parenting/
Compromised Parenting), B (PA2 Short Breaks for Disabled Children), C1 and C2

Page 27

(PA3 Risk Taking Behaviour in Children and Young People, targeted support and
Universal Support)
3.0

Monitoring Returns

3.1

The Quarter four the performance returns are attached as Appendix A Parenting/
Compromised Parenting (PA1), Appendix B Short Breaks for Disabled Children
(PA2) and Appendix C Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young people (PA3).
All appendices have indicated performance in each of the priorities as follows:

3.2. Priority Area 1 (P.A.1) Parenting/Compromised Parenting
3.2.1 In this quarter each of the organisations are now rated as green as they have
achieved their targets. Barnardos who deliver the Domestic Violence 16-17 year
olds have agreed to return £45,000 as they had failed to deliver their expected
units. The monitoring process used to evaluate this area of the Early Intervention
Grant is Outcomes Based Accountability and this has three areas which are:
!
!
!

How much did we do?
How well did we do it?
Is there anyone better off?

3.2.2 How much did we do? In this area the accumulative target which was set for the
providers was that they provide an intervention to 510 people over the year. This
target was overachieved as the total of interventions delivered was 1014 which is
approximately 50% over what was asked of them.
3.2.3 How well did we do it? Each participant is asked to make a judgement on how
well the service provider has treated them. The different categories is whether they
rated it successful, average or below average. Less than 5% rated the service they
received as being below average and the organisations in question followed this up
to find out what the reason was. In most of the cases the reasons was that the
participants felt they did not want or need the service. Taking this into consideration
this means that 95% rated the intervention they received as either successful or
average.
3.2.4 Is there anyone better off? Most organisations have 4 outcomes they have had to
achieve and the method most commonly used is pre and post questionnaires where
a person will make a judgement at the beginning of where they feel they are at then
at the end to show the distance they have travelled. Each organisation has different
outcomes and in general the feedback was that the range of impact for participants
ranged from over 50% to 100%.

3.3.

Priority Area 2 (P.A.2) Short Breaks for Disabled Children

3.3.1 The majority of services are continuing to deliver expected outputs. The After School
Club for Children with complex health needs has been reduced this quarter from 3
nights per week during term time to 2 nights per week; this was based on needs
assessment from the outputs being achieved. The contract carer scheme was
reduced to maintain the current delivery levels; they have recruited 2 contract
carers to date. Outcomes are continued to be achieved and methods of capturing
the impact are continuing to improve.

Page 28

3.4

Priority Area 3 (P.A.3) Risk Taking Behaviour in Children and Young People

3.4.1 This priority covers both targeted and universal open access activities. In the
targeted services, all providers are meeting the set targets and are reporting having
a positive impact on service users. The targeted sports intervention for young
people who are Looked After has been well received and staff are reporting a
reduction in the number of placement breakdowns. The Enhanced Outreach has
been delivered in areas where previously there were reported incidents of anti
social behaviour. Police have advised the providers that there is now a reduction in
anti social behaviour in those areas.
3.4.1 The Universal activities are reporting high participation rates with 360 young people
taking part in the dance programme (PA3.1b). This number included 66 young
people with learning difficulties and disabilities. 861 individual young people have
participated in the sports development evenings (PA3.1b)

5.0

Recommendations:

5.1
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report
Appendices:
Appendix A:
Appendix B:
Appendix C1:
Appendix C2:

PA1: Dashboard for Parenting/Compromised parenting
PA2: Dashboard for Short Breaks for Disabled Children
PA3: Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People (Targeted
interventions)
PA3: Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People (Universal
access)

Report Author:
Contact:
Name
Maureen Mc Daid
Phone: 666-4508
Title
Principal Manager (Commissioning/ Participation)
Email:
maureenmcdaid@wirral.gov.uk

Page 29

Appendix A PA1 EIG Parenting/Compromised Parenting Q4 (April - June 2012)

Service/Provider

Predicted Outputs

PA1.1 Early Intervention Home Visiting 250 families
Home Start

PA1.2.1a Action for Children

PA1.2.1.d Action of Children
Strengthening Famililies 10-14
PA1.2.2 Catch 22
Intensive family support

PA1.2.3 Catholic Children's Society

28 parenting groups

5 Parenting Groups

Actual Outputs
QTR 1

Actual Outputs
QTR 2

Actual
Outputs
QTR 3

Actual
Outputs
QTR 4

R/A/G
QTR 1

R/A/G
QTR 2

R/A/G
QTR 3

R/A/G
QTR 4

Comments

139

167

241

256 Green

Green

Green

Green

This organsiation has supported 256 families this year and has exceeded
their targets. There has been a reduction in three of the outcomes which is
positive as well as and increase in the other area. 94% rated the service as
succussful with 6% rating it as average. A snapshot from two of the outcome
areas are showing that out of the assessments completed 100% of families
said they were supported earlier and 100% reported that their health
inequalities was reduced as well as 53% having improved mental health.
Quote from a parent "Thank you everybody, it's been a good support for me."

1

2

12

28 Red

Amber

Amber

Green

This organisation has supported 222 parents over 3 different programme
areas which are Triple P Teens, Nurturing Programme and Strengthening
Families/Strenghtening communities. 64% rated the service as successful
with 36% rating it as average. The main outcome from this service is that
100% of parents reported that they were able to use positive strategies to
better cope with their child's behaviour. Quote from a parent "It makes you
feel better to deal with this and helps you to understand and cope on your
own"

Red

Red

Red

The funding for these courses were returned to the Local Authority

75 families

65

0
55

94

94 Green

Red

Green

Green

Green

This organisation has supported 94 families this year and is overperforming in
their targets. In their four outcome areas they are showing a positive
reduction in three of the areas and an improvement in one. 91% have
reported a reduction in the number of incidents of demostic violence and two
areas are reporting 83% improvement in school attendance and behaviour as
wel as Anti social Behaviour. Quote from a parent "We as a family have
made so many changes which was very hard, but with P's support and
constant help the changes are very positive one and have made our lives so
much easier and enjoyable" In a survey run by this organisation 66% of
participants believe they gained confidence in their own abilities with 75%
believing that they have stopped doing things that were damaging their health.

120 Families

45

80

120

124 Green

Green

Green

Green

In this quarter this organisation has over exceeded their yearly target of 120.
82% of participants rated the service as successful with 18% rating it as
average. From the assessments completed their four outcome areas are
showing an improvement. Parental health has improved by 85% and 90%
reported a reduction in risk taking behaviour. Quote from a parent " I would
definitely recommend this service to family and friends. I am confident to
manage my child's behaviour since doing this course"

80 children

11

17

52

73 Amber

Amber

Green

Green

This organisation have delivered more courses in this quarter to made sure
that they are delivering according to their contract. 100% of the participants
rated this service as successful. From the assessments completed the four
outcomes are reporting 95% positive impact for participants. One young
person said " I have learned to control my anger and my feelings"

3

12

37

Red

Amber

Amber

Green

This organisation has been developing their referral routes and have more
than doubled their numbers since last quarter. This department has
requested the return of units not delivered. 100% of participants rated this
service as successful. The outcomes achieved show a positive impact in
each of the five outcomes with two of them recording at 64.7% and the other
three over 50%. One young person reported "It was great to have someone
to listen to you and give valuable advice. It helped a lot and the worker was
very friendly"

Home Visiting 5-19

PA1.2.4a Zero Centre

Domestic Violence 5-13

PA1.2.4b Barnardos
Domestic Violence 16-18

65 young people

PA1.2.5 Wirral Multicultural
Organisation

100 families

32

51

81

108 Green

Green

Green

Green

In this quarter WMO have begun to deliver a parenting course and the
outcomes will be provided in the next quarter. 99% rated this service as
successful with 1% rating it as unsuccessful. This organisation has exceeded
their target. The four outcomes have shown a positive outcome with two of
them reporting over a 100% improvement. "I am calmer and able to deal with
things without becoming upset"

PA1.2.6 Barnardos Young Carers

140 young people

89

108

137

164 Green

Green

Green

Green

This organisation is well on track to achieve both its outputs and outcomes.
85% of particianpts rated this service as successful with 15% rating it as
average. The outcomes recorded by this project young people are reporting
a reduction in their levels of need with all six outcomes record an
improvement ranging from 58.8% to 74.1%. This is particularly significant as
it indicates that the young people have reduced their caring role. Young
people reported "It is fun meeting new people. I have made new friends"

PA 1. YOS Parenting

100 parents

36

54

184

Green

Green

Green

Green

This service has over exceeded their outputs by 99%. 70% of participants
rated this service as successful with 30% recoding that the service was
average. 97% of the Parents reported that their confidence had improved
and were experiening better rationships with their children. One parent
reported "I get on better with my daughter now and we are even more
affectionate towards each other" 73% of participants reported improved
mental health and well being.

Green

Green

Green

Green

45

Family Support for BME

199

YISP

70 young people

37

37

68

74

Page 30

It is particulrly significant that only 0.04% of this cohort reoffended. Also that
this organisation is working with over 80% of young people who have some
type of disability or has a statement of SEN. 50% of participants rated this
service as successful with 49% rating it as average. 96% of young people
reported that they reduced their risk taking behaviour.

Page 31

65 sessions

52 sessions

483 x 2hour sessions

PA2.5 Action for Children Contract Recruit 4 carers
24 children to be
Carer scheme
supported
218 nights to be
delivered

PA2.4 Wirral Council Family
Support

PA2.2 Wirral Autistic Society Sitting 598 sessions
Service
28 hours of support
PA2.3 Direct payment Support
Scheme

PA2.1i Wirral Resource Centre

28 hrs support

28 hrs support

2 recruited

2 recruited
5 children
supported
19 nights and
51sessional hrs
delivered

26 sessions
5-7 children per
session

Green

10 weekday 20 Red
weekend
5-20
young people per
session

63 sessions

Green

Amber

28 hrs support

415 sessions

51 sessions

2 recruited
7 children
supported
51nights and
28 sessional hrs
delivered

Amber

Green

2 recruited
Red
9 children
supported
65 nights and
15 sessional hrs
delivered

621 x 2hr
sessions

28 hrs support

442 Amber

51 Amber

63 sessions 88 59 sessions 87 Green
aged 5-14 28
aged 5-14 33
aged 14-18
aged 14-18

12 weekday 25
weekend
5-23
young people per
session

72 sessions

442 x 2hr sessions 442 x 2hr sessions 531 x 2hr
sessions

412 sessions

44 sessions

14 weekday
9 weekend
average of 19
children attending
per session
57 sessions
88 aged 5-14
31 aged 14-18

56 sessions

331 sessions

37 sessions

PA2.1g Wirral Sports Development- 12 weekday sessions 3 weekday
13 weekend sessions 0 weekend
Sports Sessions
20 children per session average of 20
children attending
per session
60 sessions
62 sessions 89
PA2.1h Wirral Play Council
96 children aged 5-14 aged 5-14 32
Playscheme
29 children aged 14-18 aged 14-18

PA2.1f Wirral Autistic Society
Activity Clubs

52 sessions

48 sessions
43 children

48 sessions
48 children

PA2.1e Crossroads- Pensby Wood

Amber

R/A/G
QTR 1

2 weekends 14 Green
children per
break
Amber
11 sessions
13 children per
session

46 sessions
Average of 15
children
attending

Actual Outputs
QTR 4

43 48 sessions
44 children

8 sessions
3-5 children per
session

30 sessions
7 children per session

PA2.1d Crossroads- Lyndale

47 sessions
children

26 sessions
5-7 children per
session

28 sessions
3-5 children per
session

3 weekends
Ave 11 children
per break
12 sessions
0 sessions
20 children per session 0 attending

48 sessions
45 children

2 weekends 12
children per
break
12 sessions
13 children per
session

2 weekend breaks
20 children per break

PA2.1b Crossroads- Barnstondale
Weekends

PA2.1c Crossroads- Barnstondale
after school club

42 sessions
Average of 15
children

32 sessions
17 attending
weekday
22 attending
weekend
1 weekend
11 children per
break
9 sessions
14 children per
session

36 sessions
15 children attending

PA2.1a Activate Training

3 sessions
4
attending weekday
11 attending
weekend

Actual Outputs
QTR 3

Actual Outputs
QTR 2

Predicted Outputs per Actual Outputs
quarter
QTR 1

Appendix B PA2 EIG Short Break Services Q4, (1st April - 30 June 2012)

Service/Provider

Amber

Green

Green

Amber

Amber

Green

Amber

Green

Green

Amber

Green

Green

Green

R/A/G
QTR 2

Red

Green

Green

Amber

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Amber

Amber

Green

Green

Amber

Green

Green

Amber

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Amber

Amber

Green

Green

Servcie outputs to be reduced due to carers still not being recruited.

Service operating effectively

Operating effectively. Outputs not what expected due to staff difficulties but
outcomes being achieved for those families in receipt of servcies.
Continuing to operate effectively

Continuing to operate effectively

Continuing to operate effectively

Continuing to operate effectively

Continuing to operate effectively

Serivce opertaing well. Some issues with venue to be addressed.

Still numbers attending lower than capacity for.
ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: Outputs are to be reduced to 2 sessions per
week instead of 3.

Number of children has reduced due to a new session being established
also on a Friday evening elsewhere.
ACTION TAKEN/PLANNED: Sessions to be re promoted with a specific
focus on the activities available for children (arts and crafts and cookery) as
the current poster does maybe not suggest this. Age grouping and start
time also to be revised.

The numbers vary each weekend depending on the needs of the children to
ensure the grouping is appropriate.

Service operating well.

R/A/G Qtr R/A/G Qtr Comments
3
4

Appendix C1:

PA3: Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People (Targeted interventions)

Service/Provider Targeted

Predicted Outputs

PA3.1b Sports Development

PA3.1b Youth and Play targeted Arts
programme

44 units per quarter
15 yp in attendance
per session

PA3.1b Merseyside Fire and Rescue
Life Project

100%

1in progress
(80%)

1 programme

120 units young
people from priority
PA3.1b Youth and Play Sports
groups
development enhanced outreach 13-19

PA3.1b Sports Development and
partners Holiday Periods 13-19

Delivered
Delivered
Delivered Outputs
Outputs
Outputs
(Actual and %)
(Actual and %) (Actual and %)
QTR 3
QTR 1
QTR 2

22 units this quarter
15 young people
attending per unit

1x 5 day course, 12
referrals

0%

100%

2 (100%)

PA 3.1b Merseyside Fire and Rescue
Beacon Project

2 twelve week
course + 12
referrals each
course

PA3.2 Youth and Play Advice and
Guidance

15 staff per quarter
trained 250 Agreed
Interventions per
4 Trainining and
quarter 25 group
delivery
sessions per
quarter
products (75%)

PA3.4 Youth and Play Risk taking
workshops Arts

2 (100%)

Final preperation
and delivery of 3
peer led packages

10 Peer
educators
recruited
(100%)

100%

100%

100%

1 (50%)

2 (100%)

60%

100%

1 programme
delivered 5 yp at
risk and training
to be mentors for
LAC
A

25%

80%

24 units delivered
unique young
people =153
218%

100%

104 units 80%

40 units this
quarter 280
unique yp 192%

13 referrals 5
started 100%
units 45%
attendance

100%

R/A/G
QTR 3

R

G

G

G

G

G

G

AA

G

A

A

G

Comments

R/A/G
QTR 4

G

G

A

G

LDD

Attendance

G

G

G

G

G

G

40 AQA units have been achieved by young people
from the YIP group. Despite there being a number of
staff on long term sickness a revised and modified
programme was provided.LAC programmes have
had good success and reduced placement
breakdown. 32 new participants attended the diability
holiday programme

G

Group has formed a strong supportive bond and have
been supported to gain a range of skills focussing on
organisation, responsibility and building positive
relation.One young woman has developed a range of
strategies and coping methods which have enabled
her to improve her school attendances and grades.
The school say that the impact of the programme is a
major factor in her improvement. The group is
working towards a Silver Arts Awards(level 2 QCF
credit value 10) Guided learning hours 60.

N/A

Using 4 lighting systems and a fully operational
generator on the sports mobile to light an unlit area
e.g. a MUGA, the sessions in hotspot area has
attracted 101 unique people with high attendances at
each session. Various workshops have been
delivered on the Kontactabus such as substance
misuse, careers and pamper sessions. The Police
Community Officers and the police have made
positive remarks about having the sessions in the
area of deployment with a reduction of ASB. Also
local residents and young people have made positive
comments regarding the reduction of ASM in the
Ilchester park area. Reduction in numbers in
Wallasey area for a few weeks as it was necessary to
rebuild trust following a high profile police case.
Positive relationships were reestablished. In addition
harm reduction advice and guidance has been given
using the Alcohol Alright resources. Outreach
workers and sports instructors have been signposting
young people to club based organisations.

N/A

Youth and Play are working with Sports Development
and partners in order to deliver diversionary activities.
Positive Futures: young people from tier 3 level of
need. Show great interest in the activities and
requested gym passes to train further in their own
time. YIP: retention levels remain reasonably high
only 1 person from the core of 39 has been arrested
and from the core group of young people accessing
holiday activities provided by YIP no young person
has reoffended. LAC activities reported improved self
confidence, enhanced self esteem, improved mental
well being. The disability programme had 36 new
participants, retention levels of 89%65% of
participants took part in 3 or more activities.

N/A

Young people referred because of ASAB, alcohol
misuse and for diversionary activities during school
holidays. Working with WASP school and incorrect
dates given to the students. However 5 attended and
completed the course 100% of starters completed the
course, all received First Aid certificate, all received
MFRS completion certificate. However the young
people did not complete the Asdan award as they
said they wanted to have fun during the holidays and
not sit in a classroom doing paperwork. All engaged
in Road safety, practical fire fighting drills, outdoor
pursuits and teambuilding activities and First Aid

G

G

G

G

G

N/A

60 staff trained
(15 per quarter)
100% 467 unique
people this
quarter to date
1328 132%
G

A

A

G

G

N/A

Young people are referred for : anger issues,
disaffected at school, substance misuse, fire setting,
ASB. 92% completed course (average), all received
First Aid certificates, all received MFRS completion
certificate, 2 student received Most Outstanding/Most
improved award, mentor received mentor
accreditation, 13 completed the Asdan Activities
award. All engaged and educated in Road Safety,
practical fire fighting drills, outdoor pursuits, fire
safety in the home and community, healthy eating.
Schools have reported positive impact on the young
people and improved behaviour at school. Positive
parental feedback. Some young people on course
expressed a wish to enrol with MFRS cadets
Alcohol Alright training is now completed and all staff
are delivering brief interventions with young people in
relation to their alcohol use Feedback is very good
with young people reporting positive comments and
evaluation logs reporting on attitude change to
drinking alcohol. Fewer alcohol related admissions at
Arrowe Park hospital.

N/A

At risk young people engaged in development of
production have begun to reflect upon their own
unhealthy and risky relationships. Ongoing support is
being offered and appropriate sign posting. In
addition to the RTB workshops around relationships,
we will be delivering additional RRTB work with
young people at Beb High linked to the ‘One Punch’
campaign (and Somebody's Son a previous
production). Meeting to take place with police to
develop ideas and workshops.Young people from
company successfully applied for YOF funding for a
residential to complete the script for the RTB
production which took place in March.

100%
All staff training
complete (103
participant)171%
761 interventions to
date 76% 64 group
sessions 64%

R/A/G
QTR 2

Sessions

66 units delivered
Number of unique
young people 218
150%
G

182%

83%

R/A/G
QTR 1

Delivered
Outputs
(Actual and %)
QTR 4

delivery of the 3
peer led packages
- exploring
teenage abuse in
relationships.
Project was
attended by over
500 yp from
schools and youth
clubs. 100%
G

G

G

G

G

Junior Youth Inclusion Programme
48 sessions in a
quarter
326 activity places
offered
core group of 52 yp

30 sessions
delivered, 63%
221 places taken
up 66%
regular
attendance of 47
young people 94% 89%

Page 32

89% attendance of cohort, some sessions had to be
cancelled because of poor weather. Good
engagement levels for voluntary engagement
working with this " at risk" group. Of the 36 regular
members no FTE/ re-offending in this quarter.
A

G

A

N/A

K:\Childrens Trusts\Childrens Trust Board Meetings\2012-13\2012_09_25_Board Meeting\Reports\From MMD\Appendix C PA3 EIG RAG template qtr 4.xls

Appendix C2:

PA3: Risk taking Behaviour in Children and Young People (Universal access)

Service/Provider Universal

Predicted Outputs

Delivered
Delivered Outputs Delivered Outputs Delivered Outputs
Outputs
(Actual and %)
(Actual and %)
(Actual and %)
(Actual and %)
QTR 3
QTR 2
QTR 1
QTR 4

PA3.1b Wirral Sports Development
Weekends

22 units per quarter
Agreed attendance
level 22x 15 yp
=330

PA3.1b Wirral Sports Development
Evenings

80 units per quarter
Agree attendance
level 80x15 yp
=1200

PA3.1b Youth and Play and Partners
Grange Baptist

13 sessions per
quarter 50+ yp in
attendance
targetting young
people from priority
groups
15 session (100%) 15 sessions (100%)

PA3.3a Youth and Play Arts
PA3.3a Youth and Play Sports/
accredited D o E awards

PA3.3b Involve NorthWest Disco Nights
PA3.3b Involve NorthWest Wirral's Got
Talent

PA3.3b Involve NorthWest Big Band
Nights

PA3.3b Involve North West Final
PA3.3b Involve NorthWest Dj-ing
PA3.3b Involve NorthWest Semi Final
Wirral

100%

100%

core programme of
10 units per week
as a progression
route 16 units of
dance for young
10 units core
men and mixed
programme
groups. Dance
alongside outreach
workshops 78
tasters
young men (100%)

100%

100%

100%

136%

40units 280
unique young
people182%

176.25%

152 units Number
of unique young
people 861 192%
units delivered

115%

100%

11 units delivered
on core
programme. A
total of 537 arts
activities over the
year. 317 unique
individuals this
quarter (1985
contacts) 100%

R/A/G
QTR 1

G

R/A/G
QTR 2

G

R/A/G
QTR 3

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

Work with young men in dance focussed on anger
management and alcohol misuse. Additional intensive
support continues to be given to young people with
specific needs including sexual orientation, family and
self harm issues. Increased attendance of young men
due to targeted work in schools and youth projects 225 male 135 female. High level of retention on
accredited projects/courses. 66 young people with
disability attend regularly with very successful
integration due to the delivery style including the role o
the peer educator

G

G

none this quarter
completed
none this quarter
completed

G

A

Completed Completed satisfactorily. Previously reported
Rating low because of the numbers - fewer than
hoped for. However positive feed back and
completed evaluations good percentage of LDD
Completed satisfactorily. Previously reported

G

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Shafts: 46%
attendance 6.6%
LDD South
Wirral: 37%
attendees 0 LDD
West Wirral:
106% attendance
0 LDD Wallasey:
22% attendees 0
LDD
8 bands in the
final (36 yp taking
part) plus 300
attendees 280%
1 LDD

Partnership working with colleagues in from EIG
provider's Forum Consultation and evaluation
determines future provision. Activities provided at
times of greatest need, usually after midday. New
activities include Gold Challenge Award.Young people
try 5 different sports in 5 days and aawarded on
attendance Spinning and watersports proving very
successful
Partners returning registers has been slow but
improving. Continual improvement in particular
sessions has led to an increase in participation.
Behaviour has improved, the main difficulty being that
yp are reluctant to fill in forms!
Grange Youth Interlink runs every Saturday night
numbers have dropped slightly during 6 week period
when they had to move out of their premises.
Numbers have picked up now that they have returned.
Through discussions and drama topics such as self
harm, assertiveness and peer pressures have been
covered.

G

semifinal events in 4
hubs Capacity of
150 10% LDD
Final event Capacity
100 - 120 young
people in
attendance 10%
with LDD
completed

R/A/G QTR
Comments
4

N/A

N/A

N/A

G

N/A

N/A

N/A
G

G

completed

Big Nights completed, revising approach for extended
contract.

High numbers were aided by the presence of partner
organisations
Completed satisfactorily. Previously reported
Completed satisfactorily. Previously reported

G

Voluntary Organisations

The Bank

Birkenhead Youth Club
S & W Wirral voluntary groups

60 sessions per
quarter <39 young
people per session 60 sessions (100%) 60 sessions (100%)

50 sessions

100% activity

50 sessions (100%) 50 sessions (100%) 50 sessions (100%)

50 sessions 100%
173 unique yp

Page 33

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

Over the last 6 months there has been a fundemental
change in the client group served by the drop in
facilities. As well as attracting the same group as
previously there is now a group of young people who
have been excluded from school, including some
whose exclusion was for violent conduct. In the last
quarter we have been working with a group of 12
young people from the WASP or excluded from the
WASP as well as 7 NEET young people. There is aslo
an increasing number of girls attending.
Well attended and successful activities keeping YP
engaged and off the streets. Positive feedback from
police and statistics showing lower levels of antisocial
behaviour. Soccer and trampolining remain the most
popular.

K:\Childrens Trusts\Childrens Trust Board Meetings\2012-13\2012_09_25_Board Meeting\Reports\From MMD\Appendix C PA3 EIG RAG template qtr 4.xls

Page 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 25TH SEPTEMBER 2012
Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working Group

1.0

Background

1.1

The local authority has a statutory duty to work with partners to develop a Wirral
Child Poverty Strategy as set out in the Child Poverty Act 2010. The Council has
made progress in delivering this duty through the development of a draft strategy
and action plan, taking into account the contribution of an independent advisory
group established for this purpose, the Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working
Group.

1.2

The purpose of this report is to make recommendations in respect of governance
arrangements for the Working Group and Wirral’s child poverty strategy and action
plan to facilitate future activity.

1.3

Trust Board members will be aware that the Council has allocated £400,000 as part
of its budget for 2012-13 to tackle intergenerational poverty further to the
development of the draft strategy and action plan referred to in 1.1 above. Trust
Board members are asked to note that this allocation is subject to further
consideration by the Council and an update will be provided in due course.

2.0

Role of the Working Group

2.1

The Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working Group was established with a specific
remit as set out in the Terms of Reference agreed with the Group. This remit was
to make recommendations to the Council (as the statutory lead for child poverty)
and partners by Autumn 2011 with regard to priorities for the Council and partners
in tackling child and family poverty and how these might be achieved through local
action. Membership of the Group was based on the need to harness expertise
from organisations and individuals external to the Council, and has also benefited
from representation from all political groups.

2.2

In addition to fulfilling their original remit, members of the Working Group have
initiated a number of collaborative projects with the aim of addressing issues of
child poverty on the basis of the draft ‘Roots and Wings’ strategy and largely led by
the voluntary, community and faith sector. This has included the development of a
child poverty training module which will be rolled out initially across the children’s
workforce and the establishment of a ‘Roots and Wings’ consortia to develop
collaborative working across the sector.

2.3

Given the positive contribution of the Working Group to date, and the expressed
desire of members to continue, it is proposed that meetings continue with a
refreshed Terms of Reference setting out and clear remit for the Working Group in
shaping and challenging partner activity in tackling issues of child and family
poverty in line with the finalised strategy and updated action plan.

Page 35

3.0

Proposed Governance Arrangements

3.1

To ensure that the Working Group can fulfil this role, it is proposed that the following
governance arrangements are put in place:
§

The Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working Group becomes a subgroup of the
Children’s Trust on the same basis as the Joint Commissioning Group.

§

The Children’s Trust will oversee the delivery of the child poverty strategy and
action plan through receiving quarterly reports on progress. These will be
produced by the Council and considered in advance by the Working Group and
Children’s Trust Executive.

§

The Council’s Cabinet will continue to act as the decision-making body in
respect of the overall delivery of Wirral’s child poverty strategy and action plan
given the statutory duty for the local authority in respect of child poverty, with
due regard to the role of the Children’s Trust in overseeing the delivery of the
action plan and of the Working Group in providing challenge.

§

The Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working Group will take into account the
Liverpool City Region Child Poverty and Life Chances Strategy to identify and
progress links with wider City Region activities.

4.0

Future Developments

4.1

To provide a framework for the Wirral Child and Family Working Group, a final
version of the child poverty strategy and action plan for the remainder of 2012-13 is
being produced and will be presented to the Council’s Cabinet as the decisionmaking body at the earliest possible opportunity. The final strategy and action plan
take into account the engagement and discussions with the Working Group and
other stakeholders that have taken place since the approval of the draft strategy.
The Working Group and Children’s Trust Board will be further consulted on these
documents prior to consideration by Cabinet.

4.2

The Council will review the resources in place to ensure that appropriate support is
in place to support the Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working Group in the
delivery of its role and in respect of co-ordinating activity in line with the strategy
and action plan.

5.0

Recommendations:

5.1

That Wirral Children’s Trust Board agrees the proposed governance arrangements
set out in section 3.0 above;

5.2

That Wirral Children’s Trust Board supports the continuing development of the
strategy and action plan.

Report Authors:
Bev Morgan
Manager, Home-start Wirral
Chair, Wirral Child and Family Poverty
Working Group

Contact:
Phone: 647 8369
Email: bevmorgan@homestartwirral.co.uk

Jane Morgan
Wirral Council

Phone: 691 8140
Email: janemorgan@wirral.gov.uk

Page 36

Agenda Item 8
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 25TH SEPTEMBER 2012
Wirral School HELP Survey 2012 Analysis

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Wirral Health, Education and Lifestyle Profile (HELP) Survey was developed by Wirral
Local Authority (LA) following the discontinuation of the national Tellus Survey in 2010. Its
purpose is to capture data in areas that were formerly collected by Tellus regarding emotional
health, well being and participation in positive activities. The purpose of this report is to provide an
overview of participation in the survey in Wirral schools, provide a summary of the outcomes based
on the former Tellus national indicators and present an action plan developed by the Children’s
Trust Executive and Strategy Groups in response to the 2011/12 findings.

2.0

SCHOOL PARTICIPATION

2.1

Wirral schools were invited to participate in the HELP survey during the spring term of the
2011/12 academic year. The survey consists of Primary and Secondary school versions. The
primary school version was aimed at pupils in year 6 and the secondary school version at
students in years 8 and 10. Questions in both surveys are the same, with the exception of
drug related questions and more detailed questions about the respondent's future in the
secondary school version.
A total of 3,792 children across all schools responded to the survey compared to 1460 in the
previous year. The increase is attributed to the high profile endorsement from both Primary Heads
Consultation Group (PHCG) and Wirral Association of Secondary Headteachers (WASH) and the
work carried out by the marketing team with schools.
The changes in response rates should be taken into account when analysing secondary survey
data. Additionally, more females than males (63.3% to 36.7%) completed the secondary survey
due to school type (i.e. more all girls’ schools).

Total
Number
of
Schools

Number of
Schools
represented in
the Survey

Number of
Schools
Actively
Participated

Total number
of responses
to the HELP
Survey

Comparison
with the
2010/11
HELP
Survey

Primary

85

55

45

1602

903

Secondary

22

20

12

2133

515

Special

13

9

2

56

42

Totals

120

84

59

3791

1460

School Type

Table 1: HELP Survey Participation Rates
3.0

OUTCOMES FROM THE HELP SURVEY

3.1

Highlights from the Survey Responses

3.1.1

Summary

Page 37

Only 17.3% of girls responded that nothing worries then compared to 27.6% of boys. For Primary
aged children the top three things that worry them the most are set out below:
Girls

Boys

School work and exams (48.6%)
Friendships (37.0%)
The way I look (33.0%)

School work and exams (37.1%)
Nothing worries me (27.6%)
My parents and family (24.4%)

More girls did worry about their parents and family than boys, 29.0% of respondents said it was
something they worried about. By contrast 13.3% of boys worry about the way they look.
The Secondary age the results are set out below. Only 8.3% of girls responded that nothing
worries then compared to 25.7% of boys.
Girls

Boys

School work and exams (70.6%)
The way I look (55.1%)
What to do after Y11 (47.4%)

School work and exams (48.7%)
What to do after Y11 (39.0%)
Money (29.7%)

More girls did worry about Money than boys, 37.2% of respondents said it was something they
worried about. By contrast 19.7% of boys worry about the way they look.
3.1.2

Being Healthy
Most young people in Secondary school felt happy about life at the moment, 61.7% of girls and
69.9% of boys. Both genders reported a high level of good friendships and that they felt about to
talk to their parents and carers if they have a problem. Most secondary aged respondents didn’t
feel that they could speak to a youth worker.
A total of 20.8% primary school children eat their “five a day”, compared to 15.2% of secondary
school students. Whilst 5.3% of Primary children and 8.3% of secondary respondents state they
eat none. Most young people do something active such as walking, running, sports etc most days
each week.
For Primary schools, 93.8% of primary school children state they have never smoked, girls are
more likely to have never smoked than boys. Overall 3.9% of all primary school children state they
have been drunk at least once in the last 4 weeks.
The secondary survey provided some detail on drug and alcohol misuse, 88.8% of students say
they have never taken drugs (Girls = 91.7%, Boys = 83.9%) and 71.1% say they have never
smoked, with little difference across genders. Overall 18.5% of young people state they have been
drunk at least once in the last 4 weeks.

3.1.3

Staying Safe
Young people generally feel very safe/quite safe in the area they live, travelling to and from school
and using public transport. However, 17.8% feel a bit or very unsafe in the area they live.
In Primary, 40.3% of children said they had been bullied at some point in school. Of those, 23.9%
said bullying took place in the last 4 weeks and 53.7% said this had happened a few times in the
last year. 82.7% of all primary children did not express dissatisfaction with the way the school
handles bulling with 71.1% saying that their school deals with bullying quite well or very well.
In Secondary, 32.3% of young people said they had been bullied at some point in school. Of
those, 16.5% said bullying took place in the last 4 weeks and 43.7% said this had happened a few
times in the last year. 72.3% of all of all secondary pupils did not express dissatisfaction with the
way the school handles bullying with 53.9% saying that their school deals with bullying quite well or
very well.

Page 38

3.1.3

Enjoy and Achieve
For all children and young people the thing that they worried about the most is school work and
exams.
For Primary, 88.2% of children thought that school was giving them useful skills and knowledge,
71.2% of children felt that their lessons were interesting and 81.2% felt that they had enough
support from their teacher in learning. However, 46.4% of respondents stated that other children
disrupted their lessons.
For Secondary, 76.6% of children thought that school was giving them useful skills and knowledge,
33.9% of children felt that there lessons were interesting and 58.0% felt that they had enough
support from their teacher in learning. However, 54.0% of respondents stated that other children
disrupted their lessons.

3.1.4

Making a Positive Contribution
Local parks, playgrounds and sports club remain the most common activities of young people in
their free time. The most common things that prevent young people from doing activities they
would like to do include the following: cost, activities are not available in their area, and because of
not having anyone to go with. A total of 69.4% of primary school children have taken part in a
group activity led by an adult outside of school lessons compared with 56.2% in secondary school.
The secondary survey focused on places to go on Friday and Saturday nights. A total of 20.2%
said they had been to a youth club or taken part in an activity such as sports, arts or media. 60.9%
either don’t know of or disagree that there are safe places to go on Friday and Saturday nights.
75.4% don’t know or disagree that there are choices of activities available. The cost is given as the
main reason for not using public transport (other than not needing to).

3.1.5

Economic Wellbeing
For Primary aged children 50.6% plan to stay on to do further education in college or sixth form
with 56.3% saying they think they will go to university/higher education, there is a gender gap with
60.4% of girls saying they would progress to 52.4% of boys. A further 29% state they don’t know
what they will do when leaving school.
For Secondary aged young people, 65.4% plan to stay on to do further education in college or
sixth form with 61.5% saying they think they will go to university/higher education, the gender gap
is slight with 62.9% of girls saying they would progress to 60.1% of boys. A further 20.1% state
they are not sure what they will do when leaving school. Most support when planning for the future
comes from family, friends and teachers.

3.2.1

Former National Indicators
The Tellus Survey contributed to 5 of the former National Indicators. Their definition has been
retained and the results shown in the table below. The table also contains comparisons with
the 2010/11 HELP Survey and the 2009/10 Tellus4 data.
As noted previously due to the large differences in response numbers between years
comparison of indicators between years should be carried out with caution. This factor should
be considered across all the indicators but will be most pronounced for Indicator 115.

Page 39

HELP Survey
2011/12

HELP Survey
2010/11

Tellus4 Wirral
2009/10

Emotional Health of Children

60.3

59.5

57.2

69

Children who have experienced
bullying (lower is better)

23.8

27.9

26.8

110

Young Peoples Participation in
Positive Activities

70.2

72.9

67.3

115

Substance Misuse by Young
People (lower is better)

8.2

5.8

13.9

199

Children and young people's
satisfaction with parks and play
areas

56.4

57.5

52.5

PI
No.

Indicator Description

50

Table 2: HELP Survey Performance Indicators based on former National Indicators.
3.2.2

Indicator Definitions
PI
No.

Indicator Description

50

Emotional Health of Children

Based on the percentage of children with good
relationships – has good friends and can talk to
someone when they are worried about something.

69

Children who have experienced
bullying (lower is better)

The percentage of children who state they have
been bullied either in or outside of school in the last
year. Bullying is defined as physical, verbal,
emotional as well as exclusion from activities,
damage to property or cyber (online) bullying.

110

Young Peoples Participation in
Positive Activities

The percentage of young people in secondary school
who have recently taken part in group led activities
outside of school.

115

Substance Misuse by Young
People (lower is better)

The percentage of young people who state that they
have recently been drunk or taken drugs or volatile
substances. For primary schools the questions relate
to alcohol only, for secondary schools this includes
drugs and volatile substances.

199

Children and young people's
satisfaction with parks and play
areas

Percentage of young people who state that parks
and play areas in their local area are either very
good or fairly good.

Definition

Table 3: Former National Indicator definitions.

Page 40

4.0

ACTION PLAN
The HELP survey findings have been discussed at the Children’s Trust Executive and
Strategy Groups. A range of key activities which address areas raised in the HELP survey are
underway through the delivery of the Children and Young People’s Plan. In addition the
Executive identified 5 key areas key areas where responses indicated enhanced focus on
specific issues would be beneficial. A summary of these focus areas are outlined below.
Outcome
Area
Being
Healthy

Key Area

Actions

Substance
misuse
(including
alcohol)

• Source and disseminate relevant information and teaching
resources.
• Provide staff with user friendly materials to engage and
advise young people on risks associated to Alcohol.
• Review and update School Substance Misuse Guidance
and Incident Management Document.
• Continue to support Health Services in Schools provision.
• Commission dedicated projects targeting girls.
• Continue to develop and enhance peer education
programme within schools.

Being
Healthy

Body image

• More detailed survey with children and young people to
provide a better understanding of what it is about “the way I
look” that worries them.
• Use the findings from this survey to plan interventions with
children and young people including staff training and
curriculum development.

Staying Safe

Bullying

• Further individual school analysis of HELP data and follow
up work with targeted schools.
• Development work to enhance the intelligence gathered
around bullying through additional survey questions.

Enjoy and
Achieve

Behaviour

• Produce a revised policy and practice document related to
behaviour and exclusions in partnership with all Wirral
schools including those that offer specialist provision by
March 2013.
• Increase the capacity of mainstream schools in terms of
managing behaviour and emotional health and well-being.
• Continue to develop provision at the Pupil Referral Unit.

Positive
Contribution

Youth
Service
Awareness

• A survey of providers to identify the range of charges for
activities for young people.
• Review of promotion of activities to increase effectiveness.
The Council is developing a policy on the use of social
networking.
• Provide a forum for young people at the youth Voice
Conference with invited guests:
- Merseyside Police to discuss safety.
- Merseytravel to discuss transport costs and subsidies.

Social and
Economic
Wellbeing

Planning for
the future

•
•

Deliver a business planning cycle to ensure that post 16
Provision meets the needs and demands of young people.
Develop and promote the use of a Wirral schools and
providers transition protocol to assist the smooth transition
for young people between key stage 4 and post 16

Page 41

Outcome
Area

Key Area

Actions

•

•

•

5.0

learning.
Develop and promote to young people and parents the
Mersey Interactive Portal (www.merseyinteractive.com).
Mersey Interactive is a website containing information and
links to resources and support to assist with skills
development, progression in to post 16 learning and
finding an Apprenticeship.
Promote the Wirral online prospectus
(www.ucasprogress.com) which features school sixth
form, further education and foundation learning post 16
training opportunities.
Evaluate the effectiveness of the targeted careers
education information advice and guidance service for
children at risk of non participation post 16.

CONCLUSION
The HELP Survey has provided valuable information regarding the health education and
lifestyle of young people in Wirral. Survey responses will be shared with schools and actions
in identified areas will be carried out and monitored by the Children’s Trust Executive.

6.0

RECOMMENDATIONS
6. 1 The Children’s Trust Board notes the report and the actions produced by the Children’s
Trust Executive.

Report Author:
Simon Douglas
Information Section
17 September 2012

Contact:
Phone: 666 4511
Email: simondouglas@wirral.gov.uk

Page 42

Agenda Item 11
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 25TH SEPTEMBER 2012
Children and Young People’s Plan Performance Report Quarter 1 2012/13
________________________________________________________________________

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 The Children and Young People’s Plan 2012/13 has been produced by partners to
address identified needs of children in key priority areas. The plan is delivered by
partners working through the five outcome area Strategy Groups. Performance
monitoring of the delivery of the plan is conducted via the Children’s Trust Executive
Board, chaired by the Director of Children’s Services and the Wirral Children’s Trust
Board chaired by the Lead Member for Children’s Services and Lifelong Learning.
The delivery of key projects is monitored by reporting on key performance measures
identified at the planning process. This report provides an overview of progress made
against Children’s and Young People’s Plan indicators for quarter one including
corrective action for performance issues.

2.0 PERFORMANCE SUMMARY
2.1 For Quarter one of 2012/13 24 performance indicators can be reported upon, of these
87% are achieving or exceeding the target.
3.0 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS
3.1

Performance headlines for children’s services include:
•

100% of child protection cases were reviewed within required timescales.

•

Despite the current economic climate the percentage of 16 to 18 year olds who are
not in education, employment or training is 8.5%, an improvement on the 2011-12
quarter 1 position of 8.8%.

•

Registrations of 0-4 year olds at Children’s Centres including those from
disadvantaged backgrounds has continued to improve in each quarter since
recording commenced in 2011-12.

•

Three Wirral schools get cash for rebuilds from the Government’s Priority Schools
Building Programme: Ridgeway High School in Prenton, Bedford Drive Primary
School in Rock Ferry and Foxfield Special School.

•

Wirral Youthfest 2012 - Birkenhead Park played host to this year’s Youthfest Wirral’s festival open to young people aged 13-19. The event saw over 350 young
people attending, providing an authentic festival atmosphere and a great place to
be.

•

The Wirral Schools’ Brass Band won a host of awards from the Annual Whit Friday
Brass Band marching competition in Greater Manchester. The band gained two
first prizes and a second prize for their performances and a further ‘deportment’
prize for their general demeanour and enthusiasm throughout their performances.

Page 43

•

Free holiday activities for teenagers were available for local teenagers during the
Whit school holidays in May. The sessions, which included football, tennis and
fitness classes were funded from the Early Intervention Grant and were open to
ages 13 to 19.

3.2 Performance Indicators
The following indicators have missed the quarter one target and are therefore
assessed as red or amber:
Data Key
Actual
Estimate
Provisional

Portfolio

Children’s
Services &
Lifelong
Learning
Corrective
Action:

Context:

(A)
(E)
(P)

2011/12
Year
End
Actual

PI no Title

Reduce the under
18 conception rate
1702
per 1,000 15-17
year olds

2012/2013
Quarter 1
Target

Actual

44.9

53.5 (E)

47.3

On
target

Direction
of travel

Red

n/a

(Lower is Better)

The data and the effectiveness of the interventions introduced during 2012/13 will
be monitored on a quarterly basis by Wirral’s Teenage Pregnancy Steering
Group. However, due to the timescale and nature of recording conceptions the
effectiveness of the interventions will not be realised for a considerable length of
time.
In 2012/13 the under age conception will be monitored through a new
performance indicator based on the rate of under 18 conceptions per 1,000 1517 year olds. This provides more transparent reporting and the ability to
benchmark nationally. As birth information is not immediately available there is a
time-lag of approximately 14 months in reporting; as such 2012/13 quarter 1
reporting relates to quarter 1 2011 data.
The data indicates a quarterly rate of 53.5 (per 1,000 15-17 year olds) for Q1
2011, (an estimated 78 conceptions). As per yearly trends the rate would be
expected to reduce in subsequent quarters. This data has not yet been
confirmed by the Office of National Statistics (ONS) and relies on data provided
by the Young Women's Antenatal Clinic at Arrowe Park Hospital so gives an
estimate of quarterly performance.
Quarterly performance figures should be treated with caution due to the small
numbers involved and the significance of any changes over a short period of
time.

Page 44

Portfolio

Children’s
Services &
Lifelong
Learning

Corrective
Action:

Context

Portfolio

Children’s
Services &
Lifelong
Learning

Corrective
Action:

PI
Title
no
Percentage of core
assessments for
children's social
60 care that were
carried out within 35
working days of
their
commencement

2011/12
Year
End
Actual

2012/2013
Quarter 1
Target

Actual

75%

49.1% (E)

On
target

Direction
of travel

Red

67.1%
(Higher is Better)

The level of demand and complexity of cases in this quarter has had a
significant impact on compliance with timescales. Continuous monitoring is in
place in this area by senior managers. In managing this demand on resources
and in particular managers’ time and capacity, the procedures and guidance in
this area are to be reviewed during the next quarter with the aim to increase
teams capacity to manage this area of work.
This area of performance continues to be a challenge. During this quarter,
referrals to social care increased significantly in May and June, with an
increase from a rate of 469 per 10,000 in April to 550 per 10,000 in May and
542 per 10,000 in June. On average, 97% of these referrals converted to an
initial assessment during this period. The numbers of core assessments which
were subsequently completed each month was 148 in April, 174 in May and
132 in June. The nature and the level of risk and complexity of the referrals
received by the assessment teams in this period is reflected in the significant
increase in initial child protection conferences convened by those teams in this
quarter.

PI no Title

The percentage of
final SEN
103b statements issued
within 26 weeks
(including
exceptions)

2011/12
Year
End
Actual

2012/2013
Quarter 1
Target

Actual

100%

93.3%

On
target

Direction
of travel

Amber

100%
(Higher is Better)

The volume of assessments has increased by 25% in the last 12 months. There
were 75 assessment in Q1 2012/13 compared to 44 in Q1 2011/12.
Reconfiguring of services is underway to increase the number of assessments
completed within statutory timescales.

5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.

Page 45

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Children and Young People’s Plan Performance Indicator Summary

REPORT AUTHOR:

Nancy Clarkson
Strategic Service Manager Infrastructure
Children and Young People’s Department
Telephone: 0151 666 4329
Email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Page 46

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 Children and Young People’s Plan Performance Indicator Summary
Direction of Travel Summary
% PIs No. of PIs
42%
10 Improved by more than 2.5% on previous year's performance
21%
5 Deteriorated by more than 2.5% on previous year's performance
29%
7 Stayed within +/-2.5% of previous year's performance
0%
0 Awaiting data
8%
2 Not applicable
100%

24

(Note: percentages rounded to 2 decimal places)

Target Summary
% PIs
No. of PIs
79%
19
4%
1
8%
2
8%
2
0%
0
0%
0
0%
0
100.00%

PI No.

53

60

Title

24

Green (within +10/-5% of the target)
Amber (missed target by between 5% and 10%)
Red (missed target by more than 10%)
Over-performing (more than 10% of the target)
Awaiting data
Target not set
Not Applicable
(Note: percentages rounded to 2 decimal places)

Yr End Yr End Quarter
Target Forecast 1 Target

Prevalence of
breast-feeding at 35.1%
6-8 wks from birth

Percentage of
core assessments
for children's
social care that
75.0%
were carried out
within 35 working
days of their
commencement

35.1%

75.0%

32.1%

75.0%

Quarter
Direction
On Target
1
of Travel
Actual

Corrective Action

31.56%
Green
(A)

49.1%
(A)

Page 47

Red

The level of
demand and
complexity of
cases in this
quarter has had a
significant impact
on compliance
with timescales.
Continuous
monitoring is in
place in this area
by senior
managers. In
managing this
demand on
resources and in
particular
managers’ time

PI No.

Title

Yr End Yr End Quarter
Target Forecast 1 Target

Quarter
Direction
On Target
1
of Travel
Actual

Corrective Action

and capacity, the
procedures and
guidance in this
area are to be
reviewed during
the next quarter
with the aim to
increase teams
capacity to
manage this area
of work.

61

62

63

64

65

Timeliness of
placements of
looked after
children for
adoption following
90%
an agency
decision that the
child should be
placed for
adoption

80.0%

80%

83.3%
(E)

Green

Stability of
placements of
looked after
children: number
of placements

9.0%

11.0%

11.3%
(E)

Green

70%

70.0%

67.0%
(E)

Green

9.0%
(Lower
is
Better)

Stability of
placements of
70%
looked after
children: length of
placement

Child Protection
Plans lasting 2
years or more

4.0%
(Lower
is
Better)

4.0%

4.0%

0%
(A)

Over
Performing

Percentage of
children
becoming the

13.0%
(Lower
is

15.0%

15.0%

14.5%
(A)

Green

Page 48

In quarter one no
children ceased to
be the subject of a
child protection plan
who had been the
subject of a child
protection plan
continuously for two
years or longer.
Good performance
is typified by a low
percentage
however some
children will need
child protection
plans for longer
than 2 years. It is
anticipated that this
figure will increase
during the year.

PI No.

Title

Yr End Yr End Quarter
Target Forecast 1 Target

Quarter
Direction
On Target
1
of Travel
Actual

Corrective Action

subject of Child
Better)
Protection Plan
for a second or
subsequent time.

66

67

68

70 a

103a

103b

Looked after
children cases
which were
reviewed within
required
timescales.

95.4%

95.4%
(A)

Percentage of
child protection
cases which were
100.0% 100.0%
reviewed within
required
timescales

100.0%

100.0%
Green
(E)

Percentage of
referrals to
children's social
80%
care going on to
initial assessment

95%

95%

97.5%
(A)

Green

Reduce
emergency
hospital
admissions
caused by
unintentional and
deliberate injuries
in 0-4 years

240

246

230
(A)

Green

100.0%

100.0%
Green
(A)

100.0% 98.0%

240
(Lower
is
Better)

Percentage of
final SEN
statements issued
100.0% 100.0%
within 26 weeks
(Excluding
exceptions).

Green

Percentage of
final SEN
statements issued
100.0% 100.0%
within 26 weeks
(Including
exceptions)

100.0%

93.3%
(A)

Amber

Prevalence of

4.25%

4.25%

Green

30.00% 30.00%

Page 49

The volume of
assessments has
increased by 30% in
the last 12 months.
There were 75
assessment in Q1
2012/13 compared
to 44 in Q1
2011/12.
Reconfiguring of
services is
underway to
increase the
number of
assessments
completed within
statutory
timescales.

PI No.
113

117

Title

Yr End Yr End Quarter
Target Forecast 1 Target

Chlamydia in
under 25 year
olds
16 to 18 year olds
who are not in
education,
employment or
training (NEET)

1406

1411

1503

9%
(Lower
is
Better)

9.0%

8.5%

8.5%
(P)

Green

650

660

681
(P)

Green

Percentage of
initial
assessments for
75.0
children's social
care carried out
within 10 working
days of referral

70

70

68.6
(A)

Green

Number of Foster
35
Carers

35

10

11
(P)

Green

Percentage of
children ceased
15 %
to be Looked
After who become
adopted

15%

15%

14.3%
(P)

Green

Number of Early
Years settings
judged as
inadequate

0

0

0
(A)

Green

1504

Number of Early
Years settings
delivering
flexibility in
relation to the 15
hour free
entitlement

Corrective Action

(E)

615
Number of looked (Lower
1400a after children
is
Better)

1405

Quarter
Direction
On Target
1
of Travel
Actual

0
(Lower
is
Better)

42.0%

50.0%

42.0%

50.0%
(A)

Page 50

Over
Performing

n/a

Increased interest in
flexibility from
parents has
encouraged more
pre-schools and day
nurseries in
particular to
consider offering
this approach.
Therefore, an
increased number
of pre-schools and
day nurseries are
now offering
flexibility. The Early
Years funding
formula
incorporates a
flexibility payment to
providers which
incentivises delivery
of flexible provision.

PI No.

Title

Yr End Yr End Quarter
Target Forecast 1 Target

Quarter
Direction
On Target
1
of Travel
Actual

Percentage of 0 4 year olds
80.0%
1505a registered at a
Children's Centre

80.0%

80.0%

77.5%
(E)

Green

Percentage of 0 4 year olds
registered at a
80.0%
1505b Children's Centre
(Disadvantaged
Backgrounds)

80.0%

80.0%

80.0%
(E)

Green

1702

Reduce the under
18 conception
rate per 1,000 1517 year olds

44.9
(Lower
is
Better)

44.9

44.9

53.5
(E)

Page 51

Red

n/a

Corrective Action

The data and the
effectiveness of the
interventions
introduced during
2012/13 will be
monitored on a
quarterly basis by
Wirral's Teenage
Pregnancy Steering
Group. However,
due to the timescale
and nature of
recording
conceptions the
effectiveness of the
interventions will not
be realised for a
considerable length
of time

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52

